
*The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (October 4, 2010) Page 1 

Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Fill out a form identifying the item you wish to speak on prior to the agenda 
item beginning and turn it into the City Recorder.  (The exception is formal land use hearings, which requires a specific public hearing 
process.) 

CITY OF NEWBERG 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

OCTOBER 4, 2010 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM 
401 EAST THIRD STREET 

 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER* 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(30 minutes maximum which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion; an opportunity to speak for no 
more than 5 minutes per speaker allowed) 

 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion approving a proclamation declaring October, 2010, as Domestic Violence 
Awareness Month.  (Pgs. 3-4)

 
2. Consider a motion approving a proclamation declaring October, 2010, as Archives Month. (Pgs. 5-6)
 
3. Consider a motion approving City Council Minutes for August 16, 2010, and September 7, 

2010.   (Pgs. 7-21)
 
VII. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Consider a motion adopting Ordinance No. 2010-2731 amending the Development Code 
pertaining to electronic signs.  (Pgs. 23-189)

  (Legislative Hearing) 
 
VIII. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 

1. Presentation of an Eagle Scout Project for the City. 
 

2. Update and Discussion on the UGB/URA process and status. 
 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Page 1



*The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (October 4, 2010) Page 2 

 
INDEX OF ORDERS, ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS: 
 
ORDINANCES: 
Ordinance No. 2010-2731 amending the Newberg Development Code to allow more flexibility to operate 
animated signs, depending on the zone, sign size, and operating method. 
 
  
 
 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City 
Manager’s office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 
48 hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact Norma Alley, City Recorder, at (503) 537-1283. 
 
Public testimony will be heard on all agenda items at the Council meeting. The City Council asks written testimony be submitted to the City 
Recorder before 5:00 p.m. on the preceding Thursday. Written testimony submitted after that will be brought before the Council on the night of the 
meeting for consideration and a vote to accept or not accept it into the record. 

Page 2



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: October 4, 2010 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Bob Andrews, Mayor SUBJECT:    Approve a proclamation declaring the 

month of October, 2010, as Domestic Violence 
Awareness Month. Dept.: Administration 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve a proclamation declaring the month of October, 2010, as Domestic Violence Awareness Month. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Bob Silverstein from The EMILY Fund contacted the City and inquired if the City would support a 
proclamation declaring the month of October, 2010, as Domestic Violence Awareness Month.  The EMILY 
Fund was incorporated as a nonprofit organization after the murder of Bob Silverstein’s daughter, Emily, 
last year as a dedication to continue her legacy of service to the community and to raise awareness about the 
serious issue of dating violence.  This year The EMILY Fund has distributed nearly 400,000 free wallet-
sized Dating Pledge Cards requested by over 600 domestic violence agencies in all 50 states for their work 
educating young people about dating violence. 
 
With great appreciation and gratitude, the mayor brings forward this proclamation for your consideration. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
This supports the Council’s desire to be an active participant in the community by reaching out and 
recognizing the importance of educating young adults on domestic violence that strikes our community. 

Page 3



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
A PROCLAMATION DECLARING OCTOBER AS DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS 
MONTH 
 
WHEREAS, domestic violence is a serious crime that affects people of all races, ages, gender, and income 
levels; and 
 
WHEREAS, Domestic violence is widespread and affects over four million Americans each year; and 
 
WHEREAS, one in three Americans have witnessed an incident of domestic violence; and 
 
WHEREAS, children that grow up in violent homes are believed to be abused and neglected at a rate higher 
than the national average; and 
 
WHEREAS, domestic violence costs the nation billions of dollars annually in medical expenses, police and 
court costs, shelters, foster care, sick leave, absenteeism, and non-productivity; and 
 
WHEREAS, only a coordinated community effort will put a stop to this heinous crime; and. 
 
WHEREAS, Domestic Violence Awareness Month provides an excellent opportunity for citizens to learn 
more about preventing domestic violence and to show support for the numerous organizations and 
individuals who provide critical advocacy, services, and assistance to victims. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Newberg, 
Oregon, proclaims the month of October as Domestic Violence Awareness Month and urge the citizens of 
Newberg to work together to eliminate domestic violence from our community. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and cause the Seal of the City of Newberg to be 
affixed on this 4th day of October, 2010.      
 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 4



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: October 4, 2010 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Bob Andrews, Mayor SUBJECT:    Approve a proclamation declaring the 

month of October, 2010, as Archive Month. 
Dept.: Administration 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve a proclamation declaring the month of October, 2010, as Archive Month. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Oregon’s Secretary of State, State Archivist, and State Historical Records Advisory Board (SHRAB) have 
recognized the importance of preserving our country’s documentary heritage and is encourages Cities to 
observe October, 2010, as Archive Month.  To recognize the hard work of the City Department Records 
Coordinators, it is with gratitude the mayor and city recorder brings forward this proclamation for your 
consideration. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
This supports the Council’s desire to have a transparent government and recognizes the importance of 
community involvement and accountability, which contributes to making Newberg a better place. 

Page 5



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 
A PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING OCTOBER, 2010, AS ARCHIVES MONTH 
 
 
WHEREAS, the records of the City of Newberg, Yamhill County, the State of Oregon, and the nation are 
critical to our understanding of the past and in planning for our common future; and 
 
WHEREAS, archival institutions have a responsibility to provide the public with access to their records, and 
it is a goal of these institutions to increase public awareness of the vital role they play in safeguarding 
knowledge of our intellectual, cultural, social, and governmental heritage and providing a forum for ensuring 
accountability to our citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, archival records document and provide context to our histories and evidence of our common 
and individual rights and obligations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Newberg supports the intent of Archives Month and acknowledges the value of the 
City of Newberg’s public records and recognize the hard work of those who maintain them. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Newberg, 
Oregon, the month of October, 2010, as Archives Month and encourages people in our community to 
participate in events to observe the importance of public records and to raise awareness of the vital role 
public records play in preserving our history. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and cause the Seal of the City of Newberg to be 
affixed on this 4th day of October, 2010.      
 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 6



City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: October 4, 2010 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Norma Alley, City Recorder 

SUBJECT:    Approve the August 16, 2010, and 
September 7, 2010, City Council Meeting minutes. 

Dept.:  Administration  
File No.:                              
                            (if applicable) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Approve the August 16, 2010, and September 7, 2010, City Council minutes for preservation and permanent 
retention in the City’s official records. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
On August 16, 2010, and September 7, 2010, the City of Newberg City Council held public meetings.  At 
those meetings, minutes were recorded in text. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
None. 

Page 7



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (August 16, 2010) Page 1 

CITY OF NEWBERG CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
AUGUST 16, 2010 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM 
401 EAST THIRD STREET 

 
Work Session was held prior to the meeting.  A general discussion occurred.  No decisions were made. 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:01 PM. 
 
II. ROLL CALL  
 
Members 
Present: Mayor Bob Andrews  Denise Bacon    Ryan Howard 
 Stephen McKinney  Bart Rierson    Marc Shelton    
 Wade Witherspoon 
Staff 
Present: Terrence Mahr, City Attorney Larry Fain, Senior Engineer/CIP Manager 
 Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director  Dain Eichel, Acting Public Works Director 
 Jason Wuertz, Civil Engineer Norma Alley, City Recorder 
  Jennifer Nelson, Recording Secretary  
Others 
Present: Roger Wiltshire, Edward Sullivan, Larry Kimmel, George Johnston, Brian Francis, Samuel 

Farris, and Gary Bliss 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Terrence Mahr, City Attorney, spoke of updates given during the work session on litigation with the 
initiative petition and the location for the City/County Dinner at the Inn at Red Hills or Farm to Fork restaurant 
was clarified. 
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Roger Wiltshire spoke of comments made by the city manager at the last meeting referring to citizens as 
customers of the City; he argued citizens are shareholders who pay taxes, fees, charges, and all revenue received 
by the city and they vote for councilors like stockholders choose their board of directors.  He objected to being 
referred to as a customer in a profit making organization and felt anyone with this opinion should rethink their 
position on the matter.  He spoke of not becoming an egotistical hierarchy or perceiving themselves above the 
law and cited the City’s denial of a petition submitted by Mr. Hank Grum as a denigration of the constitutional 
right to petition our government; he said Mr. Grum’s winning the law suit should tell us something is wrong in 
City decision making.  He felt the City squandered and wasted tax dollars trying to abort a citizen’s right in a 
communistic manner and the person responsible should be fired or recalled from their position.  He said to stop 
city government from squandering dollars and that he embraces capitalism, not communism. 
 
 

Page 8



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (August 16, 2010) Page 2 

 
 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion approving a Sound Permit for Newberg Friends Church Outdoor Music for 
Families and Community event on Saturday, August 21, 2010.  

 
2. Consider a motion approving City Council Minutes for June 21, 2010, and July 19, 2010. 

 
MOTION:  Shelton/Rierson approving a Sound Permit for Newberg Friends Church Outdoor Music for 
Families and Community event on Saturday, August 21, 2010 and the City Council Minutes for June 21, 2010, 
and July 19, 2010 as amended.  (7 Yes/0 No) Motion carried. 
 
VII. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Ordinance No. 2010-2728 approving the final assessments for the 
Columbia Drive (Group B) Local Improvement District Project. 

TIME – 7:10 PM 
 
Mayor Andrews called for any abstentions, biases, or conflicts of interest; none appeared. 
 
Mr. Jason Wuertz, Civil Engineer, presented the staff report (see official meeting packet for full report). 
 
Mayor Andrews opened the public testimony.  
 
Mr. Bill Elder said he spoke for the church located at Columbia Drive and College Street at a prior meeting 
raising some questions for staff.  He wanted to thank the council for their reconsideration and felt an equitable 
assessment was reached on behalf of the church and the owner of the other two parcels. 
 
Councilor Bart Rierson thanked the church and Mr. Elder for providing better access for the disabled 
community and said their willingness to participate in a Local Improvement District project helps the City to 
achieve their goals. 
 
Mayor Andrews closed the public testimony. Staff recommended adoption. The public hearing was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Witherspoon/McKinney adopting Ordinance No. 2010-2728 approving the final assessments for 
the Columbia Drive (Group B) Local Improvement District Project, read by title only. (7 Yes/0 No) Motion 
carried. 
 

2. Consider a motion adopting Order No. 2010-0027 affirming the Planning Commission’s denial 
of the Fred Meyer gas station conditional use permit/design review application.  

TIME – 7:17 PM 
 
Mayor Andrews called for any conflicts of interest, abstentions, ex parte contact, or objections to jurisdiction. 
 
Councilor Rierson mentioned emails were received through his city email account from those not supportive of 
the Fred Meyer gas station project for the record. 
 
Councilor Stephen McKinney also received emails and citizens’ comments. 
 

Page 9



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (August 16, 2010) Page 3 

Mayor Andrews received emails and was contacted about the matter by citizens concerned for the need to allow 
free enterprise, the ambient light with the drive-in theater, and traffic within the neighborhood; but, he had no 
extended discussions and his decision will be based on record. 
 
Councilor Wade Witherspoon received emails. 
 
Mr. Terrence Mahr, City Attorney, asked if everyone received the emails about the same issues as stated by 
Mayor Andrews.  All Council members did except Councilors Denise Bacon and Ryan Howard stated they 
received those emails.  Councilor Marc Shelton said all Councilors were named in the same mass email.  
Councilor McKinney added the majority of the public comments he received were in favor of the Fred Meyer 
gas station for more competition of gas prices in Newberg.  Councilor Bacon stated she does not remember 
what material was received in her packet vs. what may have been in her email inbox. 
 
Mr. Mahr made the required legal statements for quasi-judicial hearings regarding process and criteria. 
 
Mr. Wiltshire expressed his desire to speak on this matter although he had not filled out a public comment form 
to do so.  Mayor Andrews said it would be okay for him to speak. 
 
Mr. Barton Brierley presented the staff report including a PowerPoint visual aide (see official meeting packet 
for full report). 
 
Discussions followed about concerns for the 99W driveway approach, the traffic flow patterns, use of public 
streets as part of traffic circulation patterns, increase traffic volume, traffic in the neighborhood adjacent to Fred 
Meyer, accounting for driver error and out of town drivers, and drivers cutting around the island on Springbrook 
Road.  Staff addressed each of the concerns and answered questions, noting that several of the mentioned 
concerns were part of the reason the Planning Commission denied the application.  Staff also mentioned fifteen 
additional letters were received in the last day and a half as well and the Council may need to decide on those 
letters as well. 
 
Mayor Andrews asked if an applicant must meet all of the conditions to be approved.  Staff replied the applicant 
does need to meet all conditions unless a statement of exception is given.  In large-scale retail development, 
those criteria do not need to be satisfied if they meet the conditional use criteria.  Mayor Andrews asked if all 
three conditional use criteria must be met and if this is true with all prior practice; staff replied yes to both. 
 
Councilor Shelton wanted to ensure the other evidence and emails were also brought into the record. 
 
Mayor Andrews asked about storm water safeguards and areas of separation for potential petroleum spillage 
and run off.  Staff said there were manholes designed to separate oil from runoff before it enters the storm drain 
system. 
 
Councilor Shelton asked if the gas station across from the proposed site is protecting the water ways in the same 
way.  Staff was unsure of what system they had in place. Councilor Shelton asked if a major spill occurred, 
could it wash into same drain; staff replied it could. 
 
Councilor Rierson asked which of the original design criteria were not met that triggered the Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP).  Staff replied it had to do with the design criteria concerning windows and façade articulation. 
 
Councilor McKinney spoke of Fred Meyer needing the exception because it was difficult to tell how to orient a 
canopy towards a street and asked if the city was holding Fred Meyer to a different standard than others.  Staff 
replied they are holding to the criteria in place when the application was submitted. 
 
Mayor Andrews opened the public testimony. 

Page 10



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (August 16, 2010) Page 4 

 
Mr. John Bridges, Attorney for the applicant, presented a history of applicant’s background using a PowerPoint.  
He spoke of the benefits to allowing the gas station and the customers’ expectations to use the discounts they 
receive on gas.  He showed surrounding businesses with canopies being of compatible design, spoke of 
intentions to do more planting and have an obscuring fence to prevent light trespass, mentioned state of the art 
safe operating systems and two bio-swales for protection of the stormwater system, talked about working with 
the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) to get access permits, and using different surfaces for 
stopping traffic for pedestrians and improving internal traffic flow as several examples of efforts made to 
improve the situation while adding the gas station.  He said the proposal would create a functional shopping 
area, improving safety and environmental impacts with all needs being met in one place. 
 
Mayor Andrews recessed for five minutes at 8:36 PM. 
 
Proponents: 
 
Mr. Edward Sullivan spoke of this already being before the Planning Commission and now the Council is being 
asked to come to a different decision than the one already made using the same evidence.  He has three issues.  
The first being with transportation to a small site with fourteen pumps and no direct public access, only private 
access creating a pinch point for traffic flow through such a large site area; he felt there would be safety risks.  
He felt the use of the surrounding streets was contrary to city code and felt there was too much concentration on 
the internal site circulation with undercounted internal trips and unverified numbers; he did not feel they 
established safe, efficient, and adequate onsite circulation and said it would really make things worse.  He said 
putting in pedestrian crosswalks will not mitigate the use or conflicts with pedestrians and felt they failed to 
prove pedestrians will be protected.  He was concerned with impact on the neighborhood with use of city 
streets.  He wondered if the facilities are adequate to handle the volume of users when adding the gas station.  
He said the site is nonconforming and does not meet current design standards.  He said it is an ill-considered 
and unsafe design that does not meet code and felt Kroger should do better for this community.  He asked the 
Council to uphold the Planning Commission decision and deny the application. 
 
Mr. Larry Kimmel, Vice-President Bend Oil Co., stated this gas station would create no financial impact for 
him and his interest is as a spectator since Fred Meyer added a fuel facility in his town with one-thousand five-
hundred (1,500) to one-thousand nine-hundred (1,900) visits to the canopy and twelve (12) to fifteen (15) 
gallons per vehicle a day on average.  He spoke of the problem with stacking and did not feel the existing site 
could facilitate the possible volume of traffic. 
 
Councilor McKinney asked what the population base was in Bend, Oregon.  Mr. Kimmel said it is about eighty-
thousand (80,000).  Councilor McKinney said Newberg’s population is only about twenty-three-thousand 
(23,000).  Mr. Kimmel added that the traffic count in front of the Fred Meyer in Bend is lower than the traffic 
on 99W though. 
 
Councilor Witherspoon asked if he lived in Newberg.  Mr. Kimmel said he does not live here and does not 
represent any enterprise in Newberg; he was asked by colleague, Mr. George Johnston, to speak because of his 
knowledge of other Fred Meyer gas stations. 
 
Mr. George Johnston said he once owned a gas station in Newberg which was torn down.  He said Fred Meyer 
will give gas percentages but not actual numbers.  He gave some estimates of daily trips and gallons served 
based on his experiences and said his real concerns were with the removal of parking and the need for two 
tanker loads of gas deliveries a day to the site needing to make wide turns at the Columbia and West Coast 
Bank area.  He felt this alone would create a nightmare and said this would be an unsafe station with too many 
cars at the front entrance and to the store. 
 

Page 11



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (August 16, 2010) Page 5 

Mr. Brian Francis, owner of the 99W Drive-in Theater, stated his desire to see a photometric site study and a 
light study on the theater’s screen before and after construction to see if it measures lighter because of ambient 
light.  He spoke of the construction of the Coyote Homes building helping to block off ambient light from the 
car dealerships.  His main concern was for light pollution impacting his viewers’ enjoyment and wished to have 
a record for damage that may be caused due to increasing light from the gas station if it is built. 
 
Councilor McKinney asked what is regularly done to block light on the screen.  Mr. Francis said they plant trees 
to create buffer zones and other businesses have installed parking lights with lower illumination. 
 
Mr. Samuel Farris said he lives in the neighborhood adjacent to Fred Meyer and has previously testified and 
submitted material.  He is a proponent for the Planning Commission’s denial of the CUP because of safety 
concerns and increased traffic; but, also because of additional noise.  He felt there would be a reduction in the 
quality of living in that area as there are backyards only a few feet away from the Fred Meyer loading dock.  He 
felt there would be increased traffic flow around the back side of the building with the gas station as drivers try 
to avoid the traffic out in front, increasing the noise of traffic for those homes.  He was also concerned for 
livability with fuel tankers going by the houses while they are sleeping and living and for the risk of fuel 
spillage right in their back yards.  He urged Council to support the Planning Commission for the safety, 
livability, and increased noise of the surrounding area. 
 
Councilor Shelton asked when he purchased his home and if he was the first owner.  Mr. Farris replied he was 
the first owner and he purchased the home four years ago. 
 
Mr. Gary Bliss expressed concern for drainage and environmental impacts and argued the equipment was not 
“state of the art” because the use of an oil separator is 1960’s technology, not 2010 technology.  He said this 
does not prohibit hydrocarbons from getting into drainage system in any way.  He spoke of placing vaults with 
chemicals that remove 75% of hydrocarbons as better solution.  He said the two bio-swales are not designed to 
take mass spills and if there is an electronic failure of the devices; water with oils and hydrocarbons that flows 
though grasses and is sieved by swales are designed for less than two years of store.  He wished to emphasize 
his prior testimony with this additional information. 
 
Councilor Howard asked about his area of expertise.  Mr. Bliss stated he was a licensed civil engineer in the 
State of Oregon and has been for forty-one years. 
 
Undecided: 
 
Mr. Wiltshire said he would like to see the emails discussed earlier included in the public record.  He spoke of 
some of the opinions of both the proponents and opponents on certain elements of traffic and other issues to be 
inaccurate and expressed his disagreement with the Planning Director concerning traffic issues at the Safeway 
shopping center 4-way intersection; he has never found a back-up of traffic on 99W as reported.  He said he has 
been to many shopping centers and said there have been no major accidents or pedestrian kills, so that argument 
is unfounded and the statistics do not support this.  He said the addition of the service station can add jobs and is 
what the city needs as it embarks on an affordable housing conglomeration to help people find work in this 
economy.  He said the Council should not follow the Planning Commission’s decision and he supports 
reversing the denial. 
 
Councilor McKinney asked what his area of expertise is and if he was offering opinions, not studies.  Mr. 
Wiltshire said he is a retiree and versatile in many industries, he retired as a licensed real estate broker and loan 
officer and is offering his opinions only. 
 
Mayor Andrews closed the public testimony and gave the applicant an opportunity for rebuttal. 
 

Page 12



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (August 16, 2010) Page 6 

Mr. Bridges clarified the percentages of rewards card users saying that 70% of the rewards card holders qualify 
for a $0.10 discount and a 3% discount is still offered even if you do not have a rewards card.  The gas station 
would also generate twelve to twenty jobs.  He pointed out that the staff did review the application and at the 
Planning Commission meeting recommended approval because it met the CUP criteria; staff had no conflicts 
and said it was a good plan, but the Planning Commission made its own choice.  He said that Fred Meyer has a 
vested interest to make pedestrians safe and has not had problems at this location and has other locations with 
gas stations without problems.  He added this plan would include four aisles for cars to get gas from two ways 
and the Bend store location only has three aisles going one way; because of this and the fact it is a larger 
community the problem with queuing has occurred there.  The Planning Commission did a through analysis of 
the surrounding area and showed how this would be compatible.  Regarding the light issue, it cannot be known 
where the light comes from; it could be from the clouds or the moon reflecting ambient light and is out of their 
control.  It has been calculated that the light will not reach past the property line though.  As far as the trip 
through the neighborhood, there is no obligation to have a connection there at Brutscher Road and Fred Meyer 
has not necessity for it, so have it cut off if it is a concern.  He announced the applicant would not be waiving 
their rights to submit further items and would like to take advantage of submitting additional written material 
after the record is closed. 
 
Councilor Howard asked how drivers would be discouraged from going behind the Fred Meyer from the fueling 
station; Mr. Bridges said some sort of “no access” signage was expected to be used.  He also asked about 
measures to prevent spillage; Mr. Bridges spoke of underground tanks with double walls and auto shut-off 
mechanisms along with fuel/water separators which are based on the relative weight of the materials.   
 
Councilor Shelton asked about required parking spaces and if the removal of those designated along the fueling 
center would allow them to remain in code; staff replied the proposed plan with the parking space removal 
remains within code and added even more could be removed as they are only 75% full even at Christmas. 
 
Councilor McKinney added the original intent from staff was a recommendation to the Planning Commission 
was to approve this fueling station because all criteria had been met.  
 
Mr. Brierley noted additional written material was received today and Friday afternoon.   
 
MOTION:  Rierson/Shelton to accept the additional written testimony into the record.  (6 Yes/1 No 
[Witherspoon]) Motion carried. 
 
MOTION:  Shelton/McKinney to have the City Attorney verify all emails received by the Councilors will be 
included into the record.  (7 Yes/0 No) Motion carried. 
 
Mr. Mahr made legal announcements and asked if the applicant wished to further address the record. 
 
Mr. Bridges stated the applicant would like to use their right to address the closed record and to be allowed time 
to submit additional written material by noon on September 2, 2010.  Deliberations will be held at the next City 
Council meeting on September 7, 2010. 
 
VIII. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
TIME – 10:05 PM 
 
Mr. Mahr discussed Council’s desires regarding filing an appeal on a recent court decision.  Council did not 
wish to take further action until they received financial backing from the League of Oregon Cities. 
 

Page 13



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (August 16, 2010) Page 7 

Councilor Shelton wished for staff to re-look at the parking and narrow street situation at the Sheridan Street 
from Meridian Street and College Street going east, especially at the intersection.  Mr. Mahr suggested referring 
the situation to the Traffic Safety Commission. 
 
Discussions were held briefly with the City Attorney regarding when to only note potential conflicts of interest 
and when to abstain. 

 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:30 PM. 

 
ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 4th day of October, 2010. 

 
 

    ____________________________ 
     Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 
 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 7th day of October, 2010. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor  

Page 14



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (September 7, 2010) Page 1 

CITY OF NEWBERG CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2010 

7:00 P.M. MEETING 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM 

401 EAST THIRD STREET 
 
Work Session was held prior to the meeting.  An update from Engineering on the Animal Shelter was given.  
No decisions were made. 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
II. ROLL CALL  
 
Members 
Present: Mayor Bob Andrews  Denise Bacon    Ryan Howard 
 Stephen McKinney  Bart Rierson    Marc Shelton    
 Wade Witherspoon 
Staff 
Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager Terrence Mahr, City Attorney  
 Larry Fain, Senior Engineer/CIP Manager Dain Eichel, Acting Public Works Director 
 Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director  Norma Alley, City Recorder 
  Jennifer Nelson, Recording Secretary  
Others 
Present: Kale Rogers, Pat Haight, Hank Grum, Roger Wiltshire, Jennifer Bragar, Daniel W. Shepherd, Pat 

Brown, Cynthia Ziegenbein, Mary Starrett, Ryan Goosmann, Elise Hui, Philip J. Griffin, Phil 
Smith, Rick Rogers, Doug Bartlett, Peter Hainley, Robert Soppe, Roger P. Grahn, Kurt 
Ziegenbein, Larry Hill, and Lon Wall 

 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Daniel Danicic, City Manager, announced the annual Chamber of Commerce Trilogy event is on Saturday, 
the League of Oregon Cities City Hall Week hosted by Newberg is September 14th, and the fire department’s 
annual Toy & Joy Golf Tournament is September 12th.  The speed signs with flashing lights will be ordered 
tomorrow for placement on Mountainview Road in front of Joan Austin Elementary and at other schools along 
College Street as approved by the current budget; and a public meeting will be held on September 15th at the 
Library to initiate visioning for the Cultural Center Plaza and other open spaces downtown. 
 
V. APPOINTMENTS 
 

Consider a motion to appoint Kale Rogers to the Planning Commission as the student   
representative. 

 
Mr. Kale Rogers spoke of being a junior at Newberg High School who plays water polo and rugby; he is 
interested in city planning and would be grateful for the appointment as the Planning Commission student 
representative. 

Page 15



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (September 7, 2010) Page 2 

 
MOTION:  Rierson/Shelton to ratify the appointment of Kale Rogers to the Planning Commission as the 
student representative. (7 Yes/0 No) Motion carried. 
 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Pat Haight encouraged Council to approve the sound permit on the Consent Calendar this evening.  She 
also expressed concerns for the new animal shelter money and asked the City how much money is left in that 
account.  
 
Mr. Hank Grum spoke of his concerns for the City’s decision to donate land on Blaine Street to Habitat for 
Humanity and felt such a large charitable contribution was a commitment of a taxpayer resource and not 
justified when the citizens are already burdened with water rate increases.  He felt this land should be sold 
rather than donated. 
 
Mr. Roger Wiltshire mentioned an article in The Newberg Graphic this week discussing the potential closure of 
N. Howard Street in front of the Newberg Public Library and the Cultural Center.  He requested Council to 
deny any closure to that street for pedestrian purposes and felt traffic can be redesigned to come on the north 
side.  Traffic does not have to come on the south side to interfere with library activity.  
 
VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2010-2917 initiating an evaluation and 
establishment of the City’s Stormwater Management and Erosion Control Ordinance. 

 
2. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2010-2918 authorizing the city manager to sign an 

intergovernmental agreement with the City of Springfield for ambulance billing services. 
 
3. Consider a motion approving a Sound Permit for Eric Cisneros’ non-profit community event to 

be held on September 18, 2010, celebrating Mexico’s Independence Day.  
 
4. Consider a motion approving City Council Minutes for August 2, 2010. 

 
MOTION:  Shelton/McKinney approving the Consent Calendar including Resolution No. 2010-2917 
initiating an evaluation and establishment of the City’s Stormwater Management and Erosion Control 
Ordinance; Resolution No. 2010-2918 authorizing the city manager to sign an intergovernmental agreement 
with the City of Springfield for ambulance billing services; a Sound Permit for Eric Cisneros’ non-profit 
community event to be held on September 18, 2010; and the City Council Minutes for August 2, 2010.  (7 
Yes/0 No) Motion carried. 
 
VIII. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Order No. 2010-0027 affirming the Planning Commission’s denial 
of the Fred Meyer gas station conditional use permit/design review application.  

TIME – 7:19 PM 
 
Mayor Andrews announced the oral record had been closed at the previous meeting. 
 
Mr. Terrence Mahr, City Attorney, discussed issues brought up from the last hearing and the announcement that 
the record could be reopened if necessary.  He spoke of an editorial in The Newberg Graphic on August 25, 
2010, being read by Councilors Wade Witherspoon, Bart Rierson, and Stephen McKinney and suggested 

Page 16



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (September 7, 2010) Page 3 

opening the record to include this article as ex-parte contact so a rebuttal can occur.  Second, based on the 
testimony of the applicant regarding the Fred Meyer rewards card program, any council member holding a 
rewards card should declare a potential conflict of interest for financial advantage; Mayor Andrews and 
Councilors Marc Shelton, Wade Witherspoon, Bart Rierson, Denise Bacon, and Stephen McKinney all declared 
this potential conflict but stated they would base their decisions on the record.  He recommended opening the 
record to include these items and anyone who wants to address them. 
 
MOTION:  McKinney/Shelton to reopen the record for Order No. 2010-0027 accepting an article as ex-parte 
contact and declaring the potential conflict of interest for those owning a Fred Meyer rewards card. (7 Yes/0 
No) Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Andrews recessed at 7:31 PM for five minutes so council could review the editorial accepted into the 
record.  He opened public testimony for one citizen who signed up to speak. 
 
Ms. Jennifer Bragar stated she supported the editorial suggesting Fred Meyer re-craft the application to adhere 
to city standards so the Planning Commission (PC) and City Council can approve it. 
 
Mr. Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director, spoke of two additional letters being submitted and the 
two top reasons the PC denied the application; the circulation on site was not adequate and the use of public 
streets as part of the traffic pattern.  He also spoke of the need to draft a new order with conditions and findings 
of fact if Council chooses not to uphold the PC denial. 
 
Councilor Stephen McKinney said he did not support the staff recommendation to deny the application because 
past councils recommended Fred Meyer to place a gas station on the west side of the property.  He felt the 
traffic patterns would not substantially be changed in the neighborhood.  He did think there would be mitigation 
to the light and sound issues and felt the ambient light situation on the drive-in theater was proven to be dead at 
the property line by good science.  He felt it was in the public’s best interest to be able to have access to gas at 
the best price and he believed traffic could be handled at the fourteen proposed fueling pumps.  He also based 
his decision on the criteria of previous councils. 
 
Councilor Denise Bacon also supported overturning the PC decision based on finding number two. 
 
Councilor Wade Witherspoon stated he would vote to uphold the PC denial because he did not feel the Fred 
Meyer property was well laid out.  He felt it is already congested and inefficient and adding a gas station would 
only make the traffic flow through the property worse.  He spoke of his concern for people traveling west 
turning at Springbrook Road, realizing they cannot make a left turn to get to the gas station, and then using the 
neighborhood.  He also felt drivers would use the area behind the building as a shortcut too.  He was not 
convinced the majority of Newberg wants this and he did not feel a few cents saved with a new gas station 
outweighed the cost of livability.  He said he respects the Planning Commission and he would have to feel 
strongly enough in favor to vote against their decision, but he does not and he asked to uphold their denial. 
 
Councilor Bart Rierson also supported upholding the PC decision because of concerns with the traffic 
circulation and the safety of pedestrians walking from the parking lot to the store.  He was also concerned about 
drivers not being able to turn left once they saw the gas station because they would further impact the livability 
of the neighborhoods.  Although Fred Meyer has a good plan for handling the lighting issue, he is concerned 
there could be an impact on the drive-in theater; he is not convinced the light will stop at the edge of the parking 
lot.  He will vote to uphold the PC decision. 
 
Councilor Marc Shelton said if a business comes up with a product to sell, regardless of the commodity, and it 
fits in the criteria, then he is not in a position to deny that just because there might be a problem with traffic 
flow.  Based on the record, Fred Meyer assured us changes around the main entrance to prevent pedestrian 

Page 17



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (September 7, 2010) Page 4 

injury and whatever is done to improve it will be beneficial; they have also not experienced any hits currently.  
He cannot confirm the ability to bring down gas prices, but he feels Fred Meyer is contributing to the livability 
of Newberg and he supports that. 
 
Mayor Andrews said he will be voting to deny the PC decision because of concerns with traffic patterns and he 
feels some things cited by testimony were more anecdotal rather than supported by facts.  He also appreciates 
the concerns for those supporting the denial, but wonders if it could be passed to support the gas station if staff 
returned with a written order including conditions to resolve those concerns. 
 
MOTION:  Shelton/Bacon to amend the denial of Order No. 2010-0027 to direct staff to prepare new findings 
of fact for the September 20, 2010, City Council meeting to support the conditional use permit application for a 
gas station at Fred Meyer if the motion to deny prevails. (7 Yes/0 No) Motion carried. 
 
MOTION:  to deny Order No. 2010-0027 not affirming the Planning Commission’s denial of the Fred Meyer 
gas station conditional use permit/design review application with the amendment to direct staff to return with 
new findings of fact supporting the gas station on September 20, 2010. (4 Yes/3 No [Howard, Witherspoon, 
Rierson) Motion carried. 
 

2. Consider a motion adopting Ordinance No. 2010-2730 amending the Newberg Comprehensive 
Plan and Newberg Development Code to promote affordable housing and to create residential 
design standards. 

TIME – 7:58 PM 
 
Mayor Andrews asked for any abstentions, biases, or conflicts of interest; none appeared. 
 
Mr. Brierley presented staff report with a PowerPoint as visual aide (see official meeting packet for full report). 
 
Mayor Andrews opened the public testimony. 
 
Opponents: 
 
Mr. Daniel Shepherd had concerns for fast-track development occurring and felt the rule concerning the number 
of stories allowed when R-1 is up against R-3 zones.  He spoke of the problems with allowing developers to 
give land to nonprofit organizations to develop affordable housing without actually building affordable houses 
within their project.  He said this allows for a “not in my backyard” attitude by keeping the expensive homes 
from being mixed in with the affordable ones.  He spoke of payment-in-lieu of credits allowing for the “good 
‘ole boy network” to remain in effect of “you take care of me, I take care of you” and was concerned that less 
expensive building just means relaxing codes and using cheaper materials.  He also wondered if supporting and 
promoting for employers meant they get tax breaks or help paying some of their expenses; this was pretty 
vague.  He felt the idea of building affordable housing for the people who work in Newberg was putting the cart 
before the horse because Newberg does not have the jobs yet.  Focus should remain with bringing revenue and 
income into Newberg rather than building more houses and the “if we build it they will come” mentality. 
 
Mr. Pat Brown was concerned about reading the builder would be able to subsidize the required parking spaces 
by using street parking which would not put anything towards repairing the streets already in poor condition.  
Leaving that up to the builder would really mean it will be laid upon the residents on the street to deal with it. 
 
Ms. Cynthia Ziegenbien spoke of her letter being received on August 13, 2010, regarding this matter and it was 
the first time she had heard of it even though there were six to seven meetings held previously.  She wondered 
why this decision does not go to the entire city.  She felt flexible development would decrease the standard of 

Page 18



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (September 7, 2010) Page 5 

living and the City already has a problem with traffic and the loss of individual rights; she felt something this 
big should go to the voters. 
 
Ms. Mary Starrett spoke of the idea that these low-income homes will be filled with occupants filling the 
shortage of labor in Newberg does not make sense.  She felt there were too many vacant homes in Newberg that 
are not affordable to those who lived in them and the neighborhoods would be further harmed or devalued by 
the introduction of affordable housing. 
 
Ms. Pat Haight said twenty years ago Newberg was self-sustaining; there were jobs and right amount of 
housing.  Then the jobs went and development became more important.  She said there were subdivision maps 
that included affordable housing but for some reason they were not built and now were being told there are not 
enough affordable homes.  She said the city needs more jobs rather than cramming more homes onto every 
available space.  She spoke of this affecting the use of or changing the value of properties that are already low. 
 
Mr. Ryan Goosman spoke of the current traffic impacts from subdivisions already built on people’s ability to 
walk around Newberg since five or six years ago.  He spoke of population and traffic volume increases on roads 
that cannot handle it.  He said he had been homeless and understands wanting to provide affordable homes 
instead of having people living on the street.  However, he is concerned because he understands Yamhill 
County Housing Authority is now dumping properties and taking losses and low income housing funding is 
hard to maintain.  He spoke of Newberg being centered on beautiful neighborhoods and having low-income 
dwelling units right next to a nice resort; he felt something different has to be done in the next ten years. 
 
Mr. Grum said tax payers need to have money left after paying their bills to put food on the table and supports 
sustainable government and livability in Newberg.  He has issues with developers being able to transfer their 
titles to nonprofit developers because they remove land from the tax base and restrict the sale of donated 
properties for twenty years, which is interference on the operation of the free market.  He spoke of public 
oversight being evaded by having this set by ordinance to go into a fund that is not even established yet.  He 
also said income requirements need to be set for affordable housing which pits social classes against each other. 
 
Proponents: 
 
Ms. Elyse Hughie, Yamhill County Housing Authority, said she appreciated all the years of work that have 
gone into the code amendments and is supportive of the ordinance.  She said there are already over one 
thousand families waiting for affordable housing in the area and over two hundred are in Newberg.  They are 
already here in the community working and doubling up in homes or living on couches to stay here; this needs 
to be addressed. 
 
Mr. Phillip J. Griffin, Board of Commission for Yamhill County Housing Authority, responded to 
misinformation given in previous testimony about the Housing Authority losing money; he argued they sell 
single family homes at fair market value and have done so with everyone they sold.  They have studied the need 
for affordable housing thoroughly and there are currently people who are employed that cannot buy any of the 
housing on the market here.  Concerning vacant housing, many were occupied by owners who overspent on 
their mortgages and anyone at the median income level would have trouble paying overhead of three hundred 
and fifty thousand to four hundred thousand for a home.  He supports the Planning Commission and has been to 
the hearings which anyone in Newberg could have attended; he felt this was a well-devised plan. 
 
Mr. Phillip Smith, Planning Commission, said he served as Chair on the Affordable Housing Task Force for the 
first year and spoke of the diverse group of Newberg citizens that eventually compromised and agreed on a 
comprehensive proposal to address a need in Newberg.  There are people working in Newberg that cannot 
afford to live here and policies are needed to get more affordable housing available.  The real driving cause for 
the lack of affordable housing was determined to be the price of land and city fees, since more land cannot be 
created; increasing density makes smaller lots which can be bought for less. 

Page 19



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (September 7, 2010) Page 6 

 
Mr. Rick Rogers, Habitat for Humanity, spoke of people being from different backgrounds with different 
outlooks attended the meetings attacking a difficult problem to come up with a workable plan.  He spoke of 
affordable housing being given a bad connotation which is not fair; it just means making homes affordable for 
the median income or less, not just the very bottom poor people.  The idea is not to make Newberg a “bedroom 
community” where people only sleep here and commute elsewhere.  He encouraged approval. 
 
Mr. Doug Bartlett served on the Affordable Housing committee representing non-city dwellers as he lives in 
Dundee.  He spoke of having an opportunity to hear from people who were not like-minded and learning of the 
frustrations and obstacles in respect to affordable housing.  He does not know the proposal will solve all the 
problems, it is an experiment with no guarantees; but, if there are no changes things will be worse down the 
road.  He is in favor of the plan and trying something different, if it is not perfect corrections can be made down 
the road.  It just relaxes some standards so opportunities can be given to others to have a good life in Newberg. 
 
Mr. Peter Hainley applauded staff and the work done; he spoke of the group being made up of lenders, private 
developers, bankers and all those involved in the housing process sitting at the same table to meet housing 
goals.  He spoke of asking workers in various businesses where they live and he believes about 30% are 
working in Newberg and living outside of the City according to his own polling.  He clarified this is not 
property tax exemption or rent control; they are middle-of-the-road types of changes to benefit the city and 
asked to please adopt the ordinance. 
 
Undecided: 
 
Mr. Robert Soppe was concerned with grouping two subjects together that should be separate and provided a 
list of questions, concerns, and corrections in writing which addressed the proposed plan directly (please see 
official meeting record for full report).  
 
Mr. Roger Grahn said he is a builder of affordable housing which means you build more for less money.  He is 
a proponent of the concepts but an opponent of the details.  He spoke of the need to build more units in order to 
cover costs of construction and thinking outside of the box with public/private funding of System Development 
Charges (SDC’s); but he is opposed to design standards because they make costs go up, not down. 
 
Mr. Kurt Ziegenbein says he remembers this town when it used to be a great place to live and now it is only 
about growth and on the fast-track to destroying a nice small town.  He was concerned for cramming so much in 
and making the street minimum so small you cannot drive a car beside the house to get to the back yard.  He 
said the town has gone far enough and although he agrees with affordable housing, he does not agree with the 
pictures he saw in the presentation because those pictures are not affordable.  He hates to see the town destroyed 
any more than it has been. 
 
Mr. Larry Hill spoke of other cities sending people to Newberg because they do not want to do affordable 
housing, the diminishing middle class and wanting to protect his property.  He understands wanting a place 
being built for affordable homes, but not next to him.  He said there is nothing protecting him and his property. 
 
Mr. Lon Wall spoke of civilized society not being able to ignore the needs of those less fortunate.  He felt it was 
reasonable to help those in situations who want to work here and live here and contribute to the community.  He 
did not believe it was the case that this would bring an end to the market and property rights.  He encouraged 
council to pay close attention to the points brought up by Mr. Soppe and he thought the affordable housing plan 
should be kept separate from the design standards. 
 
Mayor Andrews closed the public testimony.  Staff made recommendations with corrections and clarified some 
items brought up in testimony.  The public hearing was closed. 
 

Page 20



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (September 7, 2010) Page 7 

Councilor McKinney said he was reluctant to support this for the philosophical differences on infilling and 
because the public does not seem willing to endorse or accept it wholeheartedly.  It is possible the cost may be 
too great if it is not successful. 
 
Councilor Ryan Howard spoke of references to low income and affordable housing being the same and people 
alluded to not preferring these people as neighbors.  He spoke of many of his classmates being examples of 
those entering the work force right out of college or high school, starting families, and having a hard time 
finding work and a place that is affordable to live.  He spoke of the difference of those desiring a back yard and 
those that would enjoy it, but it is not feasible; this proposal does not prevent those who want a big yard, it just 
allows for those who do not see it as a necessity. 
 
Councilor Rierson supported the comprehensive plan and development code changes.  He did not think anyone 
is getting exactly what they want but he supports at least trying to see if things can be made better by providing 
more affordable options for those families. 
 
MOTION:  Shelton/Rierson to postpone the decision until October 18, 2010, directing staff to separate the 
design standards and the affordable housing elements, bringing it back as two different items incorporating 
testimony received and clarifying ambiguous items. (7 Yes/0 No)  Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Andrews called a brief recess at 10:34 PM. 
 
IX. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
Mr. Mahr announced the upcoming deadlines to the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) regarding the 
Economic Opportunities Analysis. 
 
Mr. Danicic discussed the upcoming auction for property the city was interested in purchasing. 
 
Mr. Witherspoon asked the City Attorney to further clarify what they are at liberty to discuss outside of the 
confines of a meeting and what is considered ex-parte contact.  Mr. Mahr clarified points for him. 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:54 PM. 

 
ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 4th day of October, 2010. 

 
 

    ____________________________ 
     Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 
 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 7th day of October, 2010. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor  
 

Page 21



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 22



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2731 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: October 4, 2010 
Order           Ordinance   XX    Resolution                Motion               Information___ 
No.                  No.  2010-2731         No. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Ordinance: Steve Olson, AICP 

SUBJECT:  Consider a Development Code text 
amendment to allow more flexibility to use electronic 
signs, depending on the zone, sign size, and mode of 
operation.   

Dept.: Planning & Building 
File No.: DCA-09-002 

HEARING TYPE:   LEGISLATIVE   QUASI-JUDICIAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Ordinance No. 2010-2731, approving a development code text 
amendment to allow more flexibility to use electronic signs, depending on the zone, sign size, and mode 
of operation. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  The Newberg Development Code currently limits the size of animated 
electronic signs to 10 square feet. Some sign owners feel this is overly restrictive, and that larger 
animated signs could benefit both businesses and the larger community. The City Council adopted 
Resolution 2009-2840 on May 4, 2009, which authorized the Mayor to establish an ad-hoc committee to 
identify and recommend appropriate changes to the animated sign code to balance community and 
business needs. The resolution also established a pilot program, which allowed owners of electronic 
signs who became members of the program to experiment with animated messages.  
 
The Mayor appointed nine community members to the Electronic Sign Ad Hoc Committee, representing 
a wide range of interests, and the Council consented to the appointments on August 3, 2009. The 
committee was charged with conducting a thorough evaluation of potential code amendments and their 
impacts on the local economy, information dissemination, community aesthetics, and safety. The 
committee was also charged to meet with members of the pilot program to discuss the results of the 
program.  
 
The committee held ten meetings, beginning on September 3, 2009 and concluding on June 3, 2010. The 
committee’s final recommendation was that electronic signs provide a valuable means of 
communication for the community and for businesses, and that the sign code could allow more 
flexibility to use electronic signs, depending on the zone and the sign size, while protecting the livability 
of residents. The recommended code changes would allow electronic signs in most zones to use more 
animation, depending on the zone, size, and operating method. Signs in the Community Commercial 
zone along Portland Road, for example, would be allowed to have up to a 30 square foot animated 
display with almost unlimited animation; the only restrictions would be no flashing or rapid scrolling 
would be allowed. If a sign owner in the Community Commercial zone wanted a larger animated sign 
then it would either be restricted in how it could operate or it would require a special review process. 
The code amendment would create a Site Element review process for some larger signs, based on size 
and operating method in certain zones. It would leave the prohibition on animated signs in the 
downtown (C-3 zone) in place, although the Ad Hoc Committee recommended that the Downtown 
Coalition revisit that issue as part of their process.    
 
The City Council accepted the Electronic Sign Ad Hoc Committee’s final recommendation at their July 
6, 2010 meeting and initiated a development code amendment to consider the recommended code 
changes. The Planning Commission held a workshop on July 8, 2010 to learn about the committee’s 

Page 23



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2731 PAGE 2 

final recommendation. The Planning Commission held a public hearing to consider the proposed code 
amendment on August 12, 2010. They approved Planning Commission Resolution 2010-281, which 
recommended that the City Council adopt the development code amendment as proposed by the 
Electronic Sign Committee, with one minor addition to the text to clarify the definition of a “business” 
in section § 151.597.5 (C)(1)(e)9. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: No fiscal impact to the City. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: The proposed changes may help local businesses prosper, and may 
help local community groups through voluntary public service messages run by the electronic sign 
owners. The limitations on mode of operation and size, based on the zone, will protect residential areas 
from potential negative impacts. 
 
Attachments: 
 Ordinance 2010-2731 
  Exhibit A: Findings  

1. Planning Commission Resolution No. 2010-281 
  Exhibit A:  Proposed Amendments  
  Exhibit B:  Findings  
2. City Council Resolution 2010-2909 
3. Electronic Sign Ad Hoc Committee (ESAHC) final recommendation 
4. Background information from ESAHC meetings:  

a. 6/3/10: Draft code language, test cases – existing sites, size of existing signs 
b. 5/6/10: Draft code language, test cases 
c. 4/1/10: Sign standards discussion - display method, size, zoning, site review 
d. 3/4/10: Review process discussion, preliminary code language  
e. 2/4/10: Summary tables of sign codes (17 cities), Workshop on value statements 
f. 1/7/10: Size of existing signs, field trip agenda 
g. 12/3/09: Safety/driver distraction issues  
h. 11/5/09: Summaries of sign codes – Spokane, Salem. C-3 electronic sign example 
i. 10/1/09: Summaries of sign codes – model code, Beaverton, Tigard, Sherwood,                

McMinnville   
j. 9/3/09: Review of existing code, draft work plan 

5. Public comments received to date 
6. Comments from animated sign Pilot Program participants 
7. Minutes of ESAHC meetings 
8. City Council Resolution 2009-2840 
 

 

Page 24



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2731 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE NEWBERG DEVELOPMENT CODE 
TO ALLOW MORE FLEXIBILITY TO OPERATE ANIMATED SIGNS, 
DEPENDING ON THE ZONE, SIGN SIZE, AND OPERATING METHOD 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The Newberg Development Code limits the size of animated signs to 10 square feet, regardless 

of the zone the sign is located in. Some sign owners felt this was overly restrictive, and that 
larger animated signs could benefit both businesses and the larger community.   
 

2. The Electronic Sign Ad Hoc Committee was established by the City Council to identify and 
recommend appropriate changes to the sign code to balance business and community needs. 
Their final recommendation was that electronic signs provide a valuable means of 
communication for the community and for businesses, and that the sign code could allow more 
flexibility to use electronic signs, depending on the zone and the sign size, while protecting the 
livability of residents. The recommendation included a proposed development code amendment. 
 

3. On July 8, 2010, the City Council accepted the recommendation of the Electronic Sign Ad Hoc 
Committee and initiated a development code amendment to consider the potential changes to the 
Newberg sign ordinance. 

 
4. On August 12, 2010 the Newberg Planning Commission held a public hearing and approved 

Resolution 2010-281, which recommended that the City Council adopt the code amendment as 
proposed by the Electronic Sign Ad Hoc Committee, with the addition of one sentence clarifying 
the definition of a business. 
 

5. On October 4, 2010, after proper notice, the City Council held a public hearing to consider the 
proposed changes and found that the code amendment was in the best interests of the city and 
consistent with the Newberg Comprehensive Plan and State-wide planning goals.   
 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The Newberg Development Code is amended to add the new text and table below after section § 

151.597: 
 

§ 151.597.5 ELECTRONIC MESSAGE CENTERS 
(A) Electronic message center (EMC) signs are permitted subject to the limitations shown in the table 

below. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2731 PAGE 1 

Page 25



Electronic Message Center Standards by Display Method, Size, Zoning, and Review Process 

 

Display Method 

Zoning Size of EMC 
[1] Static 

Message 
Alternating 
Message 

Animated 
Message 

Extended 
Video 
Message 

Flashing 
or rapid 
scrolling 

Up to 30 sq. ft. Allowed Allowed Allowed Allowed Prohibited 

> 30 sq. ft. up 
to 50 sq. ft. Allowed Allowed 

Allowed[2] 
or Site 
element 
review 

Site 
element 
review 

Prohibited 

Community 
Commercial 
and Industrial 
(C-2, M-1, M-
2, M-3, M-4); 
other zones not 
listed > 50 sq. ft. up 

to 100 sq. ft. Allowed Allowed 
Site 
element 
review 

Prohibited Prohibited 

Up to 30 sq. ft. Allowed Prohibited Prohibited Prohibited Prohibited Central 
Business 
District (C-3)  > 30 sq. ft. up 

to 100 sq. ft. Allowed Prohibited Prohibited Prohibited Prohibited 

Up to 30 sq. ft. Allowed Allowed Allowed Prohibited Prohibited 

> 30 sq. ft. up 
to 50 sq. ft. Allowed Allowed 

Allowed[2] 
or Site 
element 
review 

Prohibited Prohibited 

Institutional 
(I), 
Neighborhood 
Commercial 
(C-1), and 
Residential-
Professional 
(R-P) 

> 50 sq. ft. up 
to 100 sq. ft. Allowed Site element 

review 

Site 
element 
review 

Prohibited Prohibited 

Up to 30 sq. ft. Allowed Allowed  Allowed Prohibited Prohibited All Residential 
Zones 
(Including R-
1, R-2, & R-3) 
[3] 

> 30 sq. ft. up 
to 50 sq. ft. Allowed[2] Allowed[2] Allowed[2] Prohibited Prohibited 

[1] Maximum size of EMC is limited by the maximum size of sign allowed in that zone.  Therefore, 
EMCs of the size shown may or may not be allowed. 
[2] Allowed if setback from front property line is greater than 30 feet. 
[3] Must be turned off between the hours of 11 p.m. and 6 a.m.  

 
(B) Review process for allowed EMC: 

The table above lists the zones where EMCs are allowed, based on the display 
method, size, and review process. EMCs that are allowed in the zone will use the 
standard Type I administrative review process.  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2731 PAGE 2 

Page 26



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2731 PAGE 3 

(C) Review process for EMCs that require site element review:  
Site element review is a Type I process with a decision by the Planning Director. 
(1)   Criteria: The review body must find that the sign will be compatible with 
surrounding uses, based on all of the following factors: 

(a)   Proposed sign operation complies with the code. 
(b)   Setback: At least 15 feet from the front property line 

  (c)    Hours of operation: May be required to be turned off between the hours of 11 p.m. 
and 6 a.m. if sign is abutting and visible from a residential district. 

  (d)  Site landscaping is maintained and is up to code. If the site is nonconforming and 
cannot be brought up to code then efforts have been made to bring the site as close to 
code as practical.  

  (e) Freestanding signs include 3 of the following design elements: 
1. Includes prominent brickwork, masonry, naturally-finished wood, or naturally-

finished metal in frame or supports. 
2. Includes neon type tube lighting on portions of the sign outside the EMC. 
3. Uses two support poles or a full-width support structure. 
4. Outline or top of the frame is predominantly non-rectangular or curved. 
5. Includes landscaping around the base equal in area to the size of the sign. 
6. More than 40% of sign is EMC. 
7. Height is 20% lower than otherwise required. 
8. Setback is 20% greater than otherwise required. 
9. Sign will be used by two or more businesses on site. Each business must have 

two or more employees on site at least 15 hours per week. 
(2)   Appeals: Appeal of the Director’s decision will be to the Planning Commission. 

  
(D) Size incentive:  

If any freestanding EMC sign includes 4 of the design elements in (C)(1)(e) above then the 
allowable sign area is increased by 10%. If any freestanding EMC sign includes 5 or more of the 
design elements in (C)(1)(e) above then the allowable sign area is increased by 20%. 
 

(E) Electronic Scoreboards: Electronic scoreboards with electronic message centers in stadiums or at 
sports fields are not considered signs or limited in size or display method if they are oriented 
inward to the playing field. 

 
(F) Sign maintenance: All electronic message centers shall be kept in a good state of repair. Any 

burned out lights or LEDs shall be replaced as soon as possible.    
 
(G) Brightness: Each electronic message center shall be equipped with dimming technology that 

automatically varies the brightness of the electronic message display according to ambient light 
conditions. This standard shall only apply to signs approved after October 4, 2010. 

  
 
2. Section § 151.003 of the Newberg Development Code is amended to add the following new 

definitions: 
 

ELECTRONIC MESSAGE CENTER (EMC).  A sign that is capable of displaying words, symbols, 
figures or images that can be electronically or mechanically changed by remote or automatic means. 
 
ELECTRONIC MESSAGE CENTER DISPLAY METHODS: 

(1) Static message.   The display on the entire electronic message center stays constant for a period 
of at least ten minutes, and does not appear to change, move, scroll, vary color, or vary light 
intensity. 

 
(2)  Alternating message.  The display on the entire electronic message center is held constant for a 

period of at least 5 (five) seconds, and does not appear to change, move, scroll, vary color, or 

Page 27



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2731 PAGE 4 

vary light intensity during that period, and where the image transitions to another image instantly 
or in a transition of less than ½ second. 

 
(3)  Animated message.  The display on all or part of the electronic message center changes or 

appears to move, scroll, vary color, or vary light intensity.  Animated message excludes static 
messages, alternating messages, extended video messages and flashing or rapid scrolling. 

 
(4)  Extended video message.  A display on an electronic message center that contains images that 

vary in a continuous, non repeating fashion, similar to television viewing.  It includes messages or 
patterns of images that repeat in segments over ten seconds in duration.  It excludes images that 
serve as a background display, where a foreground display comprising at least 50 percent of the 
EMC surface is held constant for continuous one second intervals.  It also excludes flashing or 
rapid scrolling displays. 

 
(5)  Flashing or rapid scrolling.  Flashing means a display that includes a pattern of sudden 

alteration (less than ½ second) between an illuminated EMC face and a face without illumination, 
or an EMC face where the copy color and the background color alternate or reverse color 
schemes rapidly (in less than ½ second).  Rapid scrolling means any letter or character in a 
message moves or appears to move across an EMC face faster than 10 feet in two seconds.  
Flashing or rapid scrolling excludes a transition of less than ½ second between messages on an 
alternating message display. Flashing or rapid scrolling is prohibited. 

 
(6)  Strobe lights.  Strobe lights are high intensity flashing lights that may impair vision. Strobe 

lights are prohibited on signs. 
 
 

3. Sections § 151.593, 151.594, 151.596 and 151.599 of the Newberg Development Code are 
amended as follows:  
Note: deletions are struck through, additions are underlined.) 

 
151.593 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS; ALL SIGNS. 
(C)    No animated sign shall exceed ten square feet in area. In the C-3 Zone, animated signs are 
prohibited. 
 
151.594 MAJOR FREESTANDING SIGNS. 
(B)    Size. 
(1)    Residential Zones: No major freestanding sign shall be larger than 0.2 square foot per foot of street 
frontage, up to a maximum of 30 50 square feet. At least six square feet of signage will be allowed. Major 
freestanding signs are not allowed on lots containing only one single family dwelling or duplex. 
 
151.596 MAJOR ATTACHED. 
(B)    Size: 
(1)    R-1, R-2, and R-3 Zones: The total of all major attached signs on any building frontage shall not 
exceed 0.2 square foot for each foot of building frontage. At least six square feet of signage will be 
allowed up to a maximum of 30 50 square feet. Major attached signs are not allowed on lots containing 
only one single family dwelling or duplex. 

 
151.599 TEMPORARY SIGNS FOR EVENTS. 
In addition to the portable signs otherwise permitted in this code, a lot may contain temporary signs in 
excess of the number and size allowed by § 151.598 above, during events as listed below: 
(A)    Grand opening event: A grand opening is an event of up to 30 days duration within 30 days of 
issuance of a certificate of occupancy for a new or remodeled structure, or within 30 days of change of 
business or ownership. No lot may have more than one grand opening event per calendar year. The 
applicant shall notify the city in writing of the beginning and ending dates prior to the grand opening 
event. If there are no freestanding signs on a frontage after the grand opening event, one of the temporary 

Page 28



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2731 PAGE 5 

signs may remain on the property for the 60 days immediately after the end of the grand opening event. A 
temporary electronic message center may be used during a grand opening event. 
(B)    Election event: An election event begins 90 days prior to and end 14 days after any public election. 
During this event a lot may contain up to two additional temporary signs not to exceed 12 square feet total 
area for both signs. These signs shall not be located in the public right-of-way. 
(C)    Other events: A lot may have two other events per calendar year. The events may not be more than 
eight consecutive days duration, nor less than 30 days apart. A temporary electronic message center may 
be used during the event. 
(D)    Flag displays: One flag display is permitted on each street frontage. An unlimited number of 
displays is permitted on any legal holiday or Newberg City Council designated festival. 

 
4. The findings in Exhibit “A” are hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated. 
 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this ordinance is 30 days after the adoption date, which is: November 4, 2010. 
 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 4th  day of  October, 2010, by the 
following votes:  AYE:   NAY:  ABSENT:    ABSTAIN:          

 
 
_________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 7th day of October, 2010. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 
 
 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
By and through  Planning Commission  Committee at the 8/12/10 meeting.  Or,        None. 
     (committee name)                 (date)      (check if applicable) 

Page 29



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2731 PAGE 6 

 
 

Exhibit “A”: Findings 
 

Newberg Development Code § 151.590  PURPOSE. 
 
 (A) The citizens of Newberg desire a clean, attractive, economically vibrant, and safe community.  

Well planned and constructed signs can contribute to the community's success by directing and 
informing the public about commercial and other activities, and by creating attractive 
commercial and other neighborhoods.  On the other hand, unregulated signage can create 
clutter, distractions, and hazards. 

 
 (B) These regulations are designed: 
  (1) To improve, maintain and preserve Newberg as a pleasing environment so as to improve 

the quality of life of all residents. 
  (2) To enhance the attractiveness of Newberg as a place to conduct business. 
  (3) To enable the identification of places of residences and business. 
  (4) To allow the freedom of expression. 
  (5) To reduce distractions and obstructions from signs which would adversely affect safety. 
  (6) To reduce the hazards from improperly placed or constructed signs. 
 
Newberg Comprehensive Plan 
 

H. THE ECONOMY 
 

GOAL: To develop a diverse and stable economic base. 
 

POLICIES: 
1. General Policies 

p.  The City shall strive to develop and promote a high quality of life in the 
community in order to attract and retain a diverse and highly skilled workforce.   

q. The City shall foster an environment of business innovation so that the community 
may remain economically competitive. 

 
J. URBAN DESIGN 

 
GOAL 1: To maintain and improve the natural beauty and visual character of the City. 
 
POLICIES: 

1. General Policies 
c. Non-residential uses abutting residential areas should be subject to special 

development standards in terms of setbacks, landscaping, sign regulations, 
building heights and designs. 

g. Community appearance should continue to be a major concern and subject of a 
major effort in the area.  Street tree planting, landscaping, sign regulations and 
building improvements contribute to community appearance and should continue 
to be a major design concern and improvement effort. 

 
 

Page 30



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2731 PAGE 7 

Findings:  As stated in the above policies, visual appearance and economic vitality are both very 
important to the community. Signs are by their nature designed to be visible and are therefore a 
significant part of the city’s visual appearance. Sign regulations are necessary to control the visual 
impact of signs. Local businesses and institutions need sufficient signage to communicate with the 
public and help their businesses or organizations prosper. The proposed code regulations would allow 
more animated messages on signs, which would aid local businesses and institutions but could have a 
negative visual impact if unlimited. The code would limit the impact, however, by keeping existing 
controls on the overall height and size of all signs, and by limiting the operating method of the animated 
sign based on the size of the sign and the zone it was located in. Signs in or near residential areas would 
have the most limitations on animated signs, thus protecting the livability of residential neighborhoods. 
The proposed development code amendment therefore conforms to the Newberg Comprehensive Plan 
by balancing the goals of protecting the visual character of Newberg and fostering a strong economic 
environment. 

 
 
 

Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189


	Agenda
	Proclamation for Domestic Violence Awareness Month
	Proclamation for Archive Month
	Council Minutes for 8/16/2010 & 9/7/2010
	Ordinance No. 2010-2731 - Electronic Signs



